

Risk Factors Comparison 2025-03-14 to 2024-03-13 Form: 10-K

Legend: New Text ~~Removed Text~~ Unchanged Text Moved Text Section

The Corporation's business is subject to many risks and uncertainties. Although the Corporation seeks ways to manage these risks and develop programs to control those that management can control, the Corporation ultimately cannot predict the extent to which these risks and uncertainties could affect the Corporation's results. Actual results may differ materially from management's expectations. The following discussion sets forth what the Corporation currently believes could be the most significant factors of which it is currently aware that could affect the Corporation's business, results of operations or financial condition. You should consider all of the following risks together with all of the other information in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. Risks Related to Lending Economic conditions may adversely affect the Corporation's financial performance. The Corporation's businesses and results of operation are affected by the financial markets and general economic conditions in the United States, and particularly to adverse conditions in New York and Pennsylvania. Key economic factors affecting the Corporation include the level and volatility of short- term and long- term interest rates, inflation, tariffs, home prices, unemployment and under- employment levels, bankruptcies, household income, consumer spending, fluctuations in both debt and equity capital markets and currencies, liquidity of the financial markets, the availability and the cost of capital and credit, investor sentiment, confidence in the financial markets, and the sustainability of economic growth. The deterioration of any of these conditions could adversely affect the Corporation's consumer and commercial businesses, its securities and derivatives portfolios, its level of charge- offs and provision for credit losses, the carrying value of the Corporation's deferred tax assets, its capital levels and liquidity, and the Corporation's results of operations. A decline or prolonged weakness in business and economic conditions generally or specifically in the principal markets in which the Corporation does business could have one or more of the following adverse effects on the Corporation's business: i. a decrease in the demand for loans and other products and services; ii. a decrease in the value of the Corporation's loans or other assets secured by consumer or commercial real estate; iii. an impairment of certain of the Corporation's intangible assets, such as goodwill; and iv. an increase in the number of borrowers and counter- parties who become delinquent, file for protection under bankruptcy laws or default on their loans or other obligations to the Corporation. Additionally, in light of economic conditions, the Corporation's ability to assess the creditworthiness of its customers may be impaired if the models and approaches that it uses to select, manage, and underwrite loans become less predictive of future behaviors. Further, competition in the Corporation's industry may intensify as a result of consolidation of financial services companies in response to adverse market conditions and the Corporation may face increased regulatory scrutiny, which may increase its costs and limit its ability to pursue business opportunities. Imposition of limits by bank regulators on commercial real estate lending activities could curtail the Corporation's growth and adversely affect our earnings. In 2006, the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the FDIC , and the FRB (collectively, the " Agencies ") issued joint guidance entitled " Concentrations in Commercial Real Estate Lending, Sound Risk Management Practices " (the " CRE Guidance "). Although the CRE Guidance did not establish specific lending limits, it provides that a bank's commercial real estate lending exposure could receive increased supervisory scrutiny where total non- owner- occupied commercial real estate loans, including loans secured by apartment buildings, investor commercial real estate, and construction and land loans, represent 300 % or more of an institution's total risk- based capital, and ~~the outstanding balance- balances of such the commercial real estate loan- loans portfolio~~ has increased by 50 % or more during the preceding 36 months. Non- owner occupied Commercial- commercial real estate loans represent represented 403-399. 64 % of Bank risk- based capital at as of December 31, 2023-2024 and the outstanding balance- balances of our non- owner occupied commercial real estate loan- loans portfolio has increased by greater than 50-53. 2 % during the 36 months preceding December 31, 2023-2024. In December 2015, the Agencies released a new statement on prudent risk management for commercial real estate lending (the " 2015 Statement "). In the 2015 Statement, the Agencies, among other things, indicate the intent to continue " to pay special attention " to commercial real estate lending activities and concentrations going forward. If the Bank's regulators were to impose restrictions on the amount of such loans it can hold in its portfolio or require it to implement additional compliance measures, for reasons noted above or otherwise, the Corporation's earnings would be adversely affected as would earnings per share. Commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans increase the Corporation's exposure to credit risks. ~~At~~ As of December 31, ~~2023-2024~~ , the Corporation's portfolio of commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans totaled \$ ~~1. 387-517~~ billion or 70-73. 3-2 % of total loans. The Corporation plans to continue to emphasize the origination of these types of loans, which generally expose the Corporation to a greater risk of nonpayment and loss than residential real estate or consumer loans because repayment of commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loans often depends on the successful operation and income stream of the borrower's business. Additionally, such loans typically involve larger loan balances to single borrowers or groups of related borrowers compared to residential real estate and consumer loans. Also, some of the Corporation's borrowers have more than one commercial loan outstanding. Consequently, an adverse development with respect to one loan or one credit relationship can expose the Corporation to a significantly greater risk of loss compared to an adverse development with respect to residential real estate and consumer loans. In some instances, the Corporation has originated unsecured commercial loans to certain high net worth individuals who are personally liable. This type of commercial loan has an increased risk of loss if the Corporation is unable to collect repayment through legal action due to personal bankruptcy or other financial limitations of the borrower. The Corporation targets its business lending and marketing strategy towards small to medium- sized businesses. These small to medium- sized businesses generally have fewer financial resources in terms of capital or borrowing capacity than larger entities. If general economic conditions negatively impact these businesses,

the Corporation's results of operations and financial condition may be adversely affected. Changes in occupancy trends resulting from shifts in macroeconomic conditions could adversely impact our commercial borrowers, particularly in relation to borrowers with substantial office or retail-specific exposures. Loan participations may have a higher risk of loss than loans the Bank originates because the Bank is not the lead lender-bank and has limited control over credit monitoring. The Corporation occasionally purchases commercial real estate and commercial and industrial loan participations secured by properties outside its market area-areas in which the Bank is not the lead lender-bank. The Corporation has purchased loan participations secured by various types of collateral such as real estate, equipment, and other business assets located primarily in New York and Pennsylvania. Loan participations may have a higher risk of loss than loans the Bank originates because we rely on the lead lender-bank to monitor the performance of the loan. Moreover, our decisions regarding the classification of a loan participation and credit loss provisions associated with a loan participation are made in part based upon information provided by the lead lender-bank. A lead lender-bank also may not monitor a participation loan in the same manner as we would for loans that the Bank originates. At As of December 31, 2023-2024, loan participation balances where the Bank is not the lead lender-bank totaled \$ 177-168.6-2 million, or 9-8.00-1 % of our loan portfolio. At As of December 31, 2023-2024, commercial and industrial loan participations outside our market area-areas totaled \$ 11.6-3 million, or 4-3.38-8 % of the commercial and industrial loan portfolio, and -There were no commercial real estate loan participations outside our market area-areas totaled \$ 2.1 million, or 0.2 % of the commercial real estate portfolio. If the Bank's underwriting of these participation loans is not sufficient, our non-performing loans may increase and, negatively effecting our earnings may decrease results of operations. We are subject to environmental liability risk associated with lending activities. A significant portion of our loan portfolio is secured by real estate, and we could become subject to environmental liabilities with respect to one or more of these properties. During the ordinary course of business, we may foreclose on and take title to properties securing defaulted loans. In doing so, there is a risk that hazardous or toxic substances could be found on these properties. If hazardous conditions or toxic substances are found on these properties, we may be liable for remediation costs, as well as for personal injury and property damage, civil fines and criminal penalties regardless of when the hazardous conditions or toxic substances first affected any particular property. Environmental laws may require us to incur substantial expenses to address unknown liabilities and may materially reduce the affected property's value or limit our ability to use or sell the affected property. In addition, future laws or more stringent interpretations or enforcement policies with respect to existing laws may increase our exposure to environmental liability. Although we have policies and procedures to perform an environmental review before initiating any foreclosure action on nonresidential real property, these reviews may not be sufficient to detect all potential environmental hazards. The remediation costs and any other financial liabilities associated with an environmental hazard could have a material adverse effect on us. The foreclosure process may adversely impact the Bank's recoveries on non-performing loans. The Judicial foreclosure process is protracted, which delays our ability to resolve non-performing loans through the sale of the underlying collateral. The longer timelines have been the result of additional consumer protection initiatives related to the foreclosure process, increased documentary requirements and judicial scrutiny, and, both voluntary and mandatory programs under which lenders may consider loan modifications or other alternatives to foreclosure. These reasons, historical issues at the largest mortgage loan servicers, and the legal and regulatory responses have impacted the foreclosure process and completion time of foreclosures for residential mortgage lenders. This may result in a material adverse effect on collateral values and the Corporation's ability to minimize its losses. The Corporation's portfolio of indirect automobile lending exposes it to increased credit risks. At As of December 31, 2023-2024, \$ 210-178.4-1 million, or 10-8.7-5 % of our total loan portfolio, consisted of automobile loans, primarily originated through automobile dealers for the purchase of new or used automobiles. The Corporation serves customers that cover a range of creditworthiness and the required terms and rates are reflective of those risk profiles. Automobile loans are inherently risky as they are often secured by assets that may be difficult to locate and can depreciate rapidly. In some cases, repossessed collateral for a defaulted automobile loan may not provide an adequate source of repayment for the outstanding loan and the remaining deficiency may not warrant further substantial collection efforts against the borrower. Automobile loan collections depend on the borrower's continuing financial stability, and therefore, are more likely to be adversely affected by job loss, divorce, illness, or personal bankruptcy. Additional risk elements associated with indirect lending include the limited personal contact with the borrower as a result of indirect lending through non-bank channels, namely automobile dealers. The allowance for credit losses may prove to be insufficient to absorb losses in the loan portfolio. The Corporation's customers may not repay their loans according to the original terms, and the collateral securing the payment of those loans may be insufficient to pay any remaining loan balance. Hence, the Corporation may experience significant credit losses, which could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's operating results. Management makes various assumptions and judgments about the collectability of its loan portfolio, including the creditworthiness of its borrowers and the value of the real estate and other assets serving as collateral for the repayment of loans. In determining the amount of the allowance for credit losses, management relies on its CECL methodology, loan quality reviews, past experience, and an evaluation of forward-looking economic forecasts, among other factors. If these assumptions prove to be incorrect, the allowance for credit losses may not be sufficient to cover future losses in the Corporation's loan portfolio, resulting in required additions to the allowance for credit losses. Material additions to the allowance would materially decrease earnings. The Corporation's emphasis on the origination of commercial loans is one of the more significant factors in determining its allowance for credit losses. As the Corporation continues to increase the amount of these loans, additional or increased provisions for credit losses may be necessary, which may result in a decrease in earnings. Effective January 1, 2023, the Corporation adopted ASU 2016-13, Financial Instruments- Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial Instruments, which requires the Corporation to estimate the lifetime expected credit losses in the loan portfolio as of the measurement date. This methodology is dependent on the relationship between economic variables and historic default, and there is no guarantee that these factors will be similarly correlated in the future. A departure or decoupling in correlation may increase the risk of that the allowance for credit losses is being inadequate

to absorb anticipated lifetime credit losses, and may require changes in the Corporation's methodology, which may result in increased provision requirements, materially adversely impacting the results of operations and financial condition. Bank regulators periodically review the Corporation's allowance for credit losses and may require the Corporation to increase its provision for credit losses or loan charge-offs. Any increase in the allowance for credit losses or loan charge-offs as required by these regulatory authorities could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's results of operations and / or financial condition. In addition, any future credit deterioration, may require us to increase our allowance for credit losses in the future. The Corporation is subject to risks and losses resulting from fraudulent activities that could adversely impact its financial performance and results of operations. As a bank, we are susceptible to fraudulent activity that may be committed against us or our clients, which may result in financial losses or increased costs to us or our clients, disclosure or misuse of our information or our client information, misappropriation of assets, privacy breaches against our clients, litigation or damage to our reputation. We are subject to fraud and compliance risk, including but not limited to, in connection with the origination of loans, ACH transactions, wire transactions, ATM transactions, checking transactions, and debit cards that we have issued to our customers and through our online banking portals. We have experienced losses due to apparent fraud. The Bank owns a participating interest totaling \$ 4. 2 million in an approximately \$ 36. 0 million commercial credit facility on which the borrower defaulted due to fraudulent activity. On April 23, 2020 the Corporation received payment of \$ ~~461,309~~ **0. 5 million** from the lead bank related to its obligation under the participation agreements. The Bank continues to pursue recovery of the remaining \$ 3. 7 million, interest, and accumulated expenses as a result of purchasing the participation interest. While the Corporation believes this incident was an isolated occurrence, there can be no assurance that such losses will not occur again or that such acts will be detected in a timely manner. We maintain a system of internal controls and insurance coverage to mitigate against such risks, including data processing system failures and errors, and customer fraud. If our internal controls fail to prevent or detect any such occurrence, or if any resulting loss is not insured or exceeds applicable insurance limits, it could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Use of appraisals when underwriting loans secured by real property may not accurately represent the net value of collateral the Bank can realize at a future date. When evaluating decisions to extend credit that is to be secured by real property, it is generally the requirement of the Bank to ~~require~~ **require-obtain** an appraisal on the property being collateralized. Appraisals are only an estimate of the value of the property as of the time of the appraisal, and real estate values may fluctuate over short periods of time, whether on a market basis, or in relation to a specific property. Therefore, appraised estimates may not accurately represent the net value of collateral in periods after loan closing. If an appraisal does not reflect the amount that may be realized on the sale of real property, we may not be able to realize an amount which is equal to the indebtedness secured by the property. Additionally, appraisals are relied upon to establish the fair value of other real estate owned, and to determine specific allocations to the allowance for credit losses on ~~loans that are collateral- dependent~~ **collateral- dependent** individually analyzed ~~loans using the collateral method~~. Inaccuracies in these valuations due to appraisals may result in representation in the consolidated financial statements that is not reflective of current conditions existing as of or subsequent to the measurement date, and could materially adversely impact our results of operation and financial condition. Risks Related to Liquidity Liquidity needs could adversely affect the Corporation's financial condition and results of operation. The primary sources of funds of the Bank are customer deposits and loan repayments. While scheduled loan repayments are a relatively stable source of funds, they are subject to the ability of borrowers to repay the loans. The ability of borrowers to repay loans can be adversely affected by a number of factors, including changes in economic conditions, adverse trends or events affecting business industry groups, reductions in real estate values or markets, business closings or layoffs, inclement weather, which could be exacerbated by potential climate change, natural disasters and international instability. Market conditions may impact the competitive landscape for deposits in the banking industry. The ~~rising~~ **rising-elevated** interest rate environment and future actions ~~of~~ the FRB may impact pricing and demand for deposits in the banking industry. Additionally, deposit levels may be affected by a number of factors, including rates paid by competitors, general interest rate levels, regulatory capital requirements, returns available to customers on alternative investments, and general economic conditions. ~~At~~ **As of** December 31, ~~2023~~ **2024**, the Bank had \$ 1. 8 billion of deposit liabilities, representing 74. ~~8~~ **0**% of total deposits, that had no maturity and, therefore, may be withdrawn by the depositor at any time without penalty. The withdrawal of more deposits than the Corporation anticipates could have an adverse impact on profitability as the Corporation may be required from time to time to rely on secondary sources of liquidity to meet withdrawal demands or otherwise fund operations. Such sources include ~~proceeds~~ **advances** from ~~the~~ Federal Home Loan Bank and ~~the~~ Federal Reserve ~~advances~~, sales of investment securities and loans, and federal funds lines of credit from correspondent banks, as well as out- of- market time deposits which could cause the Corporation's overall cost of funding to increase. While the Corporation believes that these sources are currently adequate, there can be no assurance they will be sufficient to meet future liquidity demands, particularly if the Corporation continues to grow and experience increasing loan demand. The Corporation may be required to slow or discontinue loan growth, capital expenditures or other investments, or liquidate assets should such sources not be adequate. Risks Related to Changes in Interest Rates The Corporation is subject to interest rate risk, and fluctuations in market interest rates may affect its interest margin and income, demand for products, defaults on loans, loan prepayments and the fair value of its financial instruments. The Corporation's earnings and cash flows depend largely upon its net interest income. Interest rates are highly sensitive to many factors that are beyond the Corporation's control, including general economic conditions and policies of governmental and regulatory agencies, particularly the FRB. Changes in monetary policy, including changes in interest rates, could influence the interest the Corporation receives on loans and investments and the amount of interest it pays on deposits and borrowings, which may affect net interest margin. Such changes could also affect (i) demand for products and services and price competition, in turn affecting our ability to originate loans and obtain deposits; (ii) the fair value of the Corporation's financial assets and liabilities; (iii) the average duration of its mortgage- backed securities portfolio and other interest- earning assets; (iv) levels of defaults on loans; and (v) loan prepayments. **In recent years** ~~During 2022 and 2023, in response to accelerated inflation, the~~

FRB implemented **significant** monetary tightening policies, **increasing the federal funds rate by 525 basis points during 2022 and 2023**, resulting in **significantly the upper bound of the federal funds rate peaking at 5.50% as of the end of 2023**. These increases also represented the fastest pace of tightening by the FRB since the 1970s. In 2024 the FRB **decreased the federal funds rate by 100 basis points, based on its perceived progress towards a dual mandate to maximize employment and maintain stable price levels. Should the FRB determine in the future that insufficient progress has been made towards this dual mandate, they may choose to further increase** interest rates. If the interest rates paid on deposits and other borrowings **increase** at a faster rate than the interest rates received on loans and other investments, net interest income, and therefore earnings, could be adversely affected. In addition, the Corporation's net interest margin may contract in a rising rate environment because its funding costs may increase faster than the yield earned on its interest-earning assets. In a rising rate environment, demand for loans may decrease and loans with adjustable interest rates are more likely to experience a higher rate of default. Additionally, changes in interest rates also affect the fair value of the securities portfolio. Generally, the value of securities moves inversely with changes in interest rates. The combination of these events may adversely affect the Corporation's financial condition and results of operations. Earnings could also be adversely affected if the interest rates received on loans and other investments fall more quickly than the interest rates paid on deposits and other borrowings. In addition, in a falling rate environment or the recent pandemic-related environment where the FRB held the targeted federal funds rate near 0.00%, loans and certain investments may be prepaid sooner than the Corporation expects, which could result in a delay between when the Corporation receives the prepayment and when it is able to redeploy the funds into new interest-earning assets and in a decrease in the amount of interest income the Corporation is able to earn on those assets. If the Corporation is unable to manage these risks effectively, its financial condition and results of operations could be materially adversely affected. Any substantial, unexpected or prolonged change in market interest rates could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's financial condition and results of operations. Also, the Corporation's interest rate risk modeling techniques and assumptions likely may not fully predict or capture the impact **impacted** of actual interest rate changes on its balance sheet. Risks Related to Competition Strong competition within the Corporation's industry and market **areas** could limit its growth and profitability. The Corporation faces substantial competition in all phases of its operations from a variety of different competitors. Future growth and success will depend on the ability to compete effectively in this highly competitive environment. The Corporation competes for deposits, loans and other financial services with a variety of banks, thrifts, credit unions and other financial institutions as well as other entities, which provide financial services. Some of the financial institutions and financial services organizations with which the Corporation competes with are not subject to the same degree of regulation as the Corporation. Many competitors have been in business for many years, have established customer bases, are larger, and have substantially higher lending limits. The financial services industry is also likely to become more competitive as further technological advances enable more companies to provide financial services. These technological advances may diminish the importance of depository institutions and other financial intermediaries in the transfer of funds between parties. **The Corporation may not be able to..... difficulty promptly finding qualified replacement personnel.** Risks Related to Business Strategy The Corporation's growth strategy may not prove to be successful and its market value and profitability may suffer. As part of the Corporation's strategy for continued growth, it may open additional branches. In 2021, the Corporation **entered the Buffalo Metropolitan Area, opening a then full service branch in Clarence, New York. In 2024, the Corporation** opened a full-service branch **and regional banking center** in **Clarenee-Williamsville**, New York, and **plans to converted its Clarence branch into administrative offices. The Corporation anticipates it will open additional a second full-service branch branches** in **Western Williamsville**, New York **in 2024**. New branches do not initially contribute to operating profits due to the impact of overhead expenses and the start-up phase of generating loans and deposits. To the extent that additional branches are opened, the Corporation may experience the effects of higher operating expenses relative to operating income from the new operations, which may have an adverse effect on the Corporation's levels of net income, return on average equity, and return on average assets. In addition, the Corporation may acquire banks and related businesses that it believes provide a strategic fit with its business, such as the 2011 acquisition of FOFC and the 2013 acquisition of six branches from Bank of America. To the extent that the Corporation grows through acquisitions, it cannot provide assurance that such strategic decisions will be accretive to earnings. The risks presented by acquisitions could adversely affect the Corporation's financial condition and results of operations. The business strategy of the Corporation has included and may continue to include growth through acquisition from time to time. Any future acquisitions will be accompanied by the risks commonly encountered in acquisitions. These risks may include, among other things: its ability to realize anticipated cost savings, the difficulty of integrating operations and personnel, **conversion of core systems**, the loss of key employees, the potential disruption of its or the acquired company's ongoing business in such a way that could result in decreased revenues, the inability of its management to maximize its financial and strategic position, the inability to maintain uniform standards, controls, procedures and policies, and the impairment of relationships with the acquired company's employees and customers as a result of changes in ownership and management. Risks Related to Laws and Regulations The Corporation operates in a highly regulated environment and may be adversely affected by changes in laws and regulations. Currently, the Corporation and its subsidiaries are subject to extensive regulation, supervision, and examination by regulatory authorities. For example, the FRB regulates the Corporation, and the FRB, the FDIC, and the NYSDFS regulate the Bank. Such regulators govern the activities in which the Corporation and its subsidiaries may engage. These regulatory authorities have extensive discretion in connection with their supervisory and enforcement activities, including the imposition of restrictions on the operation of a bank, the classification of assets by a bank, and the adequacy of a bank's allowance for credit losses. Any change in such regulation and oversight, whether in the form of regulatory policy, regulations, or legislation, could have a material impact on the Corporation and its operations. The Corporation believes that it is in substantial compliance with applicable federal, state and local laws, rules and regulations. As the Corporation's business is highly regulated, the laws, rules, and applicable regulations are subject to regular modification

and change. There can be no assurance that proposed laws, rules and regulations, or any other law, rule or regulation, will not be adopted in the future, which could make compliance more difficult or expensive or otherwise adversely affect the Corporation's business, financial condition or prospects. Monetary policies and regulations of the Federal Reserve Board could adversely affect our business, financial condition, and results of operations. In addition to being affected by general economic conditions, our earnings and growth are affected by the policies of the FRB. An important function of the FRB is to regulate the money supply and credit conditions. Among the instruments used by the FRB to implement these objectives are open market purchases and sales of U. S. government securities, adjustments of the discount rate and changes in banks' reserve requirements against bank deposits. Throughout 2022 and 2023, the FRB increased the upper bound of the federal funds rate by 525 basis points, which increased market rates dramatically. These instruments are used in varying combinations to influence overall economic growth and the distribution of credit, bank loans, investments and deposits. Their use also affects interest rates charged on loans or paid on deposits, as well as the value of the Corporation's investment securities. The monetary policies of the FRB may be affected by certain policy initiatives of the new Administration, which has announced tariffs on certain U. S. trading partners (and has indicated additional tariffs and retaliatory tariffs against U. S. trading partners may be announced in the future) and has implemented stricter immigration policies. Although forecasts have varied, many economists are projecting that such policy initiatives may halt productivity growth and reduce available labor, creating inflationary pressures. Under such a scenario, the FRB may decide to maintain the federal funds rate at a relatively elevated level for a prolonged period of time. The extent and timing of the new Administration's policy changes and their impact on the policies of the FRB, as well as the Corporation's business and financial results, are uncertain at this time. The monetary policies and regulations of the FRB have had a significant effect on the operating results of financial institutions in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future. The effects of such policies upon our business, financial condition, and results of operations cannot be predicted. We are subject to the Community Reinvestment Act and fair lending laws, and alleged failure to comply with fair lending laws has led to material penalties. The Community Reinvestment Act ("CRA"), the Equal Credit Opportunity Act, the Fair Housing Act and other fair lending laws and regulations impose nondiscriminatory lending requirements on financial institutions. A successful regulatory challenge to an institution's performance under the CRA or fair lending laws and regulations could result in a wide variety of sanctions, including the required payment of damages and civil money penalties, injunctive relief, imposition of restrictions on mergers and acquisitions activity and restrictions on expansion. On June 24, 2021, the Bank and the New York State Department of Financial Services agreed to the settlement provisions set forth in a Consent Order pertaining to alleged violations of New York's Fair Lending Law and the federal Equal Credit Opportunity Act relating to the Bank's indirect automobile lending program. The Bank agreed to pay restitution to impacted borrowers of \$ 53,000 and a civil monetary penalty of \$ 350,000 to the New York State Department of Financial Services. The Bank has been informed by the NYSDFS that the Bank has satisfied all of its obligations under the 2021 Consent Order related to the Bank's indirect automobile lending program. Private parties may also have the ability to challenge an institution's performance under fair lending laws in private class action litigation. Such actions could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, and results of operations. Non-compliance with the USA PATRIOT Act, Bank Secrecy Act, or other laws and regulations could result in fines or sanctions. The USA PATRIOT and Bank Secrecy Acts require financial institutions to develop programs to prevent financial institutions from being used for money laundering and terrorist activities. If such activities are detected, financial institutions are obligated to file suspicious activity reports with the U. S. Treasury's Office of Financial Crimes Enforcement Network. These rules require financial institutions to establish procedures for identifying and verifying the identity of customers seeking to open new financial accounts. Failure to comply with these regulations could result in fines or sanctions. In recent years, several banking institutions have received large fines for non-compliance with these laws and regulations. While we have developed policies and procedures designed to assist in compliance with these laws and regulations, these policies and procedures may not be effective in preventing violations of these laws and regulations. The Corporation may be required to raise additional capital in the future, but that capital may not be available when it is needed, or it may only be available on unacceptable terms, which could adversely affect its financial condition and results of operations. The Bank is required by federal and state regulatory authorities to maintain adequate levels of capital to support its operations. The Corporation may at some point need to raise additional capital to support the Bank's continued growth or be required by regulators to increase its capital resources. The Corporation's ability to raise additional capital, if needed, will depend on conditions in the capital markets at that time, which are outside of its control, and on its financial performance. Accordingly, the Corporation may not be able to raise additional capital, if needed, on terms acceptable to it. If the Corporation cannot raise additional capital when needed, its ability to further expand the Bank's operations and pursue its growth strategy could be materially impaired and its financial condition and liquidity could be materially and adversely affected. In addition, if the Corporation is unable to raise additional capital when required by bank regulators, it may be subject to adverse regulatory action. Changes in tax rates could adversely affect the Corporation's results of operations and financial condition. The Corporation is subject to the income tax laws of the United States, its states, and municipalities. The income tax laws of the jurisdictions in which the Corporation operates are complex and subject to different interpretations by the taxpayer and the relevant government taxing authorities. In establishing a provision for income tax expense, the Corporation must make judgments and interpretations about the application of these inherently complex tax laws to its business activities, as well as the timing of when certain items may affect taxable income. The provision for income taxes is composed of current and deferred taxes. Deferred taxes arise from differences between assets and liabilities measured for financial reporting versus income tax return purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognized if, in the Corporation's judgment, their realizability is determined to be more likely than not. The Corporation performs regular reviews to ascertain the realizability of its deferred tax assets. These reviews include the Corporation's estimates and assumptions regarding future taxable income, which incorporates various tax planning strategies. Risks Related to Operational Matters The Corporation's controls and procedures may fail or be circumvented, which

may result in a material adverse effect on its business. Management regularly reviews and updates its internal controls, disclosure controls and procedures, and corporate governance policies and procedures. Any system of controls, however well designed and operated, is based in part on certain assumptions and can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurances that the objectives of the system are met. Our risk management framework may not be effective in mitigating risk and reducing the potential for significant losses. Our risk management framework is designed to minimize risk and loss to us. We seek to identify, measure, monitor, report and control our exposure to risk, including strategic, market, liquidity, compliance and operational risks. While we use a broad and diversified set of risk monitoring and mitigation techniques, these techniques are inherently limited because they cannot anticipate the existence or future development of currently unanticipated or unknown risks. Recent economic conditions and heightened legislative and regulatory scrutiny of the financial services industry, among other developments, have increased our level of risk. In addition ~~in March, the spring~~ 2023 ~~, the~~ failures of Silicon Valley Bank, Signature Bank, and First Republic Bank resulted in decreased confidence in banks among depositors and other investors. Accordingly, if we are unable to fully anticipate or manage these risks, we could incur losses, impacting our results of operations and financial condition. We face significant operational risks because the financial services business involves a high volume of transactions, **and these operational risks may be magnified through the use of automated processing**. We operate in diverse markets and rely on the ability of our employees and systems to process a high number of transactions. Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from our operations, including but not limited to, the risk of fraud by employees or persons outside our company, the execution of unauthorized transactions by employees, errors relating to transaction processing and technology, breaches of our internal control systems and compliance requirements, and business continuation and disaster recovery. **The Corporation uses automated processing enhance operational efficiencies by decreasing the level of manual inputs required to perform routine processes. Automated processes are initially programmed by employees who predefine the rules and logic for each task. Any errors in initial programming may lead to rapid propagation of errors in the dependent automated processes.** Insurance coverage may not be available for ~~such certain operational~~ losses, or where available, such losses may exceed insurance limits. This risk of loss also includes the potential legal actions that could arise as a result of operational deficiencies or as a result of non-compliance with applicable regulatory standards or customer attrition due to potential negative publicity. In the event of a breakdown in our internal control systems, improper operation of systems, or improper employee actions, we could suffer financial loss, face regulatory action, and / or suffer damage to our reputation. The Corporation continually encounters technological change and the failure to understand and adapt to these changes could adversely affect its business. The banking industry ~~is continues to undergoing~~ **undergo** rapid technological changes with frequent introductions of new technology-driven products and services, **most recently including the proliferation of artificial intelligence based solutions**. Technology has lowered barriers to entry and made it possible for "non-banks" to offer traditional bank products and services using innovative technological platforms such as **those developed by** fintech and blockchain **companies**. These "digital non-banks" may be able to achieve economies of scale and offer better pricing for banking products and services than the Corporation can. The Corporation's future success will depend, in part, on the ability to address the needs of customers by using technology to provide products and services that will satisfy customer demands for convenience, as well as to create additional efficiencies in operations. Many competitors **may** have substantially greater resources to invest in technological improvements, **including those related to artificial intelligence**. **Although the Corporation has made investments related to automated processing, as described above, other emerging technologies,** ~~There there~~ can be no assurance that the Corporation will be able to effectively implement new technology-driven products and services ~~or,~~ **or realize operational efficiencies from such efforts**. Failure to successfully keep pace with technological change affecting the financial services industry could have a material adverse impact on the Corporation's business and, in turn, its financial condition and results of operations. Systems failures or breaches of our network security could subject us to increased operating costs as well as litigation and other liabilities. Our operations depend upon our ability to protect our computer systems and network infrastructure against damage from physical theft, fire, power loss, telecommunications failure, or a similar catastrophic event, as well as from security breaches, denial of service attacks, viruses, worms, and other disruptive problems caused by hackers. Any damage or failure that causes an interruption in our operations could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. Computer break-ins, phishing, and other disruptions could also jeopardize the security of information stored in and transmitted through our computer systems and network infrastructure, which may result in significant liability to us and may cause existing and potential customers to refrain from doing business with us. Although we, with the help of third-party service providers, intend to continue to implement security technology and establish operational procedures designed to prevent such damage, our security measures may not be successful. In addition, advances in computer capabilities, new discoveries in the field of cryptography or other developments could result in a compromise or breach of the algorithms we and our third-party service providers use to encrypt and protect customer transaction data. A failure of such security measures could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations. It is possible that we could incur significant costs associated with a breach of our computer systems. While we have cyber liability insurance, there are limitations on coverage. Furthermore, cyber incidents carry a greater risk of injury to our reputation. Finally, depending on the type of incident, banking regulators can impose restrictions on our business and consumer laws may require reimbursement of customer losses. Operating systems and infrastructure, managed or supplied by third parties on whom we rely, could be interrupted, compromised, or otherwise breached. The potential for operational risk exposure exists throughout the Corporation's business and, as a result of the Corporation's interactions with and reliance on third parties, is not limited to the Corporation's own internal operational functions. The Corporation relies on numerous third-party vendors and service providers to conduct aspects of its business operations and faces operational risks relating to them. The Corporation's vendors, service providers, and other third parties may expose the Corporation to risk as a result of human error, misconduct, malfeasance, or a failure or breach of systems,

networks, and infrastructure. **We expect third- party vendors, or a subcontractor thereof, to increasingly incorporate artificial intelligence embedded solutions into their product offerings and operational workflows. Biased, inaccurate, or misleading outputs from artificial intelligence based solutions used by third parties may not be easily detectable by the Corporation, and may compromise our ability to rely on the products or services of contracted third parties.** As a result, the Corporation's ability to conduct business may be adversely affected by any significant disruptions to third parties with whom the Corporation interacts or relies upon.

Risks Related to Accounting Matters The Corporation's accounting policies and estimates are critical to how the Corporation reports its financial condition and results of operations, and any changes to such accounting policies and estimates could materially affect how the Corporation reports its financial condition and results of operations. Management has identified certain accounting policies as being critical because they require management's judgment to ascertain the valuations of assets, liabilities, commitments and contingencies. A variety of factors could affect the ultimate value that is obtained either when earning income, recognizing an expense, recovering an asset, valuing an asset or liability, or reducing a liability. The Corporation has established detailed policies and control procedures that are intended to ensure that these critical accounting estimates and judgments are well controlled and applied consistently. In addition, these policies and procedures are intended to ensure that the process for changing methodologies occurs in an appropriate manner. Because of the uncertainty surrounding its judgments and the estimates pertaining to these matters, actual outcomes may be materially different from amounts previously estimated. For example, because of the inherent uncertainty of estimates, management cannot provide any assurance that the Bank will not significantly increase its allowance for credit losses if actual losses are more than the amount reserved. Any increase in its allowance for credit losses or loan charge-offs could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's financial condition and results of operations. In addition, the Corporation cannot guarantee that it will not be required to adjust accounting policies or restate prior financial statements. Further, from time to time, the FASB and SEC change the financial accounting and reporting standards that govern the preparation of the Corporation's financial statements. These changes can be hard to predict and can materially impact how the Corporation records and reports its financial condition and results of operations. In some cases, the Corporation could be required to apply a new or revised standard retroactively, resulting in its restating prior period financial statements or otherwise adversely affecting its financial condition or results of operations. The Corporation holds certain intangible assets that could be classified as impaired in the future. If these assets are considered to be either partially or fully impaired in the future, its earnings and the book values of these assets would decrease. The Corporation is required to test its goodwill for impairment on a periodic basis. The impairment testing process considers a variety of factors, including the current market price of its common stock, the estimated net present value of its assets and liabilities, and information concerning the terminal valuation of similarly situated insured depository institutions. If an impairment determination is made in a future reporting period, its earnings and the book value of goodwill would be reduced by the amount of the impairment. If an impairment loss is recorded, it will have little or no impact on the tangible book value of the Corporation's common shares or its regulatory capital levels, but such an impairment loss could significantly restrict the Bank from paying a dividend to the Corporation. Financial counterparties expose the Corporation to risks. The Corporation ~~s~~ has increased its use of derivative financial instruments, primarily interest rate swaps, ~~which~~ exposes it to financial and contractual risks with counterparty banks. The Corporation maintains correspondent bank relationships, manages certain loan participations, engages in securities transactions, and engages in other activities with financial counterparties that are customary to its industry. Financial risks are inherent in these counterparty relationships.

Risks Related to Wealth Management Involvement in wealth management creates risks associated with the industry. The Corporation's wealth management operations present special risks not borne by institutions that focus exclusively on other traditional retail and commercial banking products. For example, the investment advisory industry is subject to fluctuations in the stock market that may have a significant adverse effect on transaction fees, client activity and client investment portfolio gains and losses. Also, additional or modified regulations may adversely affect our wealth management operations. In addition, our wealth management operations are dependent on a small number of established financial advisors, whose departure could result in the loss of a significant number of client accounts. A significant decline in fees and commissions or trading losses suffered in the investment portfolio could adversely affect our income and potentially require the contribution of additional capital to support our operations. There may be claims and litigation pertaining to fiduciary responsibility. From time to time as part of the Corporation's normal course of business, customers make claims and take legal action against the Corporation based on its actions or inactions related to the fiduciary responsibilities of the Wealth Management Group segment. If such claims and legal actions are not resolved in a manner favorable to the Corporation, they may result in financial liability and / or adversely affect the market perception of the Corporation and its products and services. This may also impact customer demand for the Corporation's products and services. Any financial liability or reputation damage could have a material adverse effect on the Corporation's business, which, in turn, could have a material adverse effect on its financial condition and results of operations.

General Business Risk Factors Severe weather and other natural disasters can affect the Corporation's business. The Corporation's main office and its branch offices can be affected by natural disasters such as severe storms and flooding. These kinds of events could interrupt the Corporation's operations, particularly its ability to deliver deposit and other retail banking services to its customers and as a result, the Corporation's business could suffer serious harm. While the Corporation maintains adequate insurance against property and casualty losses arising from most natural disasters, and it has successfully overcome the challenges caused by past flooding in Central New York, there can be no assurance that it will be as successful if and when **future** disasters occur. Additionally, global markets may be adversely affected by natural disasters, the emergence of widespread health emergencies or pandemics, ~~such as COVID-19~~, cyber- attacks or campaigns, military conflict ~~such as the current conflict between Russia and Ukraine~~, terrorism, or other geopolitical events. Global market disruptions may affect our business liquidity. Also, any sudden or prolonged market downturn in the U. S. or abroad, as a result of the above factors or otherwise could result in a decline in revenue and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition, including

capital and liquidity levels. Inflation can have an adverse impact on our business and on our customers. The national economy continues to experience elevated levels of inflation. As of December 31, **2023-2024**, the year over year consumer price index ("CPI") increase was **3-2.4-9%**, primarily driven by **housing increases in food and energy prices transportation costs**. The FOMC of the FRB **is, which sets the federal funds rate, has a** preferred measure of inflation, the year over year **change in** personal consumption expenditures index ("PCE"), excluding food **and energy, referred to as core PCE, which** increased **2.9-8%**. As a **Levels of inflation remain above the FRB long term target of 2.0%, which may result, in the FRB raised benchmark interest FOMC keeping the federal funds rates rate by 100 basis points in 2023 to combat elevated.** **Tariffs, federal government trade policy and fiscal initiatives, and labor market pressures may continued- continue to adversely impact** inflation **levels. High Higher** inflation, if sustained, could have an adverse effect on our business. **The recent increase Increases** in interest rates in response to elevated levels of inflation has decreased the fair value of our **available for sale** securities portfolio, resulting in an increase in unrealized losses recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income **on the shareholders' equity section of our balance sheet**. In addition, inflation-driven increases in our levels of non-interest expense could negatively impact our results of operations. **High Higher** inflation and **increasing an elevated interest rates rate** could **environment may** also cause increased volatility in the business environment, which could adversely affect loan demand and borrowers' ability to **repay loans make repayments**. The geographic concentration of the Corporation's **market markets** in upstate New York makes it more sensitive to adverse changes in regional conditions than larger or more geographically diversified competitors. The Corporation's physical branch network, and by extension its lending footprint, is significantly concentrated in the upstate region of New York State. A deterioration in local economic conditions or in the residential or commercial real estate markets within our footprint could have an adverse effect on the quality of our loan portfolios, demand for our products and services, the ability of borrowers to **make timely repay loans loan repayments**, and the value of the collateral securing loans. If demographic, employment, or other growth **factors** in our market **is negative areas deteriorate** for an extended period, subsequent income levels, deposits, and real estate development could be adversely impacted. Some of our larger competitors that are more geographically diverse may be better able to manage and mitigate risks posed by adverse conditions impacting only local or regional markets. The Corporation may not be able to attract and retain skilled people. The Corporation's success depends, in large part, on its ability to attract and retain key people. Competition for the best people in most activities in which the Corporation engages can be intense and it may not be able to hire people or **to retain them.** A key component of employee retention is providing a fair compensation base combined with the opportunity for additional compensation for above average performance. In this regard, the Corporation uses a stock-based compensation program that aligns the interest of the Corporation's executives and senior managers with the interests of the Corporation, and its shareholders. The Corporation's compensation practices are designed to be competitive and comparable to those of its peers, however, the unexpected loss of services of one or more of the Corporation's key personnel could have a material adverse impact on the business because it would lose the employees' skills, knowledge of the market, and years of industry experience and may have difficulty promptly finding qualified replacement personnel. Risks Relating to Ownership of Our Common Stock The Corporation's common stock is not heavily traded, and the stock price may fluctuate significantly. The Corporation's common stock is traded on the NASDAQ under the symbol "CHMG." Certain brokers currently make a market in the common stock, but such transactions are infrequent and the volume of shares traded is relatively small. Management cannot predict whether these or other brokers will continue to make a market in our common stock. Prices on stock that is not heavily traded, such as our common stock, can be more volatile than heavily traded stock. Factors such as our financial results, the introduction of new products and services by us or our competitors, publicity regarding the banking industry, and various other factors affecting the banking industry may have a significant impact on the market price of the shares of the common stock. Management also cannot predict the extent to which an active public market for our common stock will develop or be sustained in the future. Accordingly, shareholders may not be able to sell their shares of our common stock at the volumes, prices, or times that they desire. The Corporation is a holding company and depends on its subsidiaries for dividends, distributions and other payments. The Corporation is a legal entity separate and distinct from the Bank and other subsidiaries. Its principal source of cash flow, including cash flow to pay dividends to its shareholders, is dividends from the Bank. There are statutory and regulatory limitations on the payment of dividends by the Bank to the Corporation, as well as by the Corporation to its shareholders. FRB regulations affect the ability of the Bank to pay dividends and other distributions and to make loans to the Corporation. If the Bank is unable to make dividend payments to the Corporation and sufficient capital is not otherwise available, the Corporation may not be able to make dividend payments to its common shareholders. Provisions of the Corporation's certificate of incorporation, bylaws, as well as New York law and certain banking laws, could delay or prevent a takeover of the Corporation by a third party. Provisions of the Corporation's certificate of incorporation and bylaws, New York law, and state and federal banking laws, including regulatory approval requirements, could delay, defer or prevent a third party from acquiring the Corporation, despite the possible benefit to the Corporation's shareholders, or otherwise adversely affect the market price of the Corporation's common stock. These provisions include: a two-thirds affirmative vote of all outstanding shares of Corporation stock for certain business combinations; a supermajority shareholder vote of 75% of outstanding stock for business combinations involving 10% shareholders; the election of directors to staggered terms of three years; and advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the Corporation's Board of Directors and for proposing matters that shareholders may act on at a shareholder meeting. In addition, the Corporation is subject to New York law, which among other things prohibits the Corporation from engaging in a business combination with any interested shareholder for a period of five years from the date the person became an interested shareholder unless certain conditions are met. These provisions may discourage potential takeover attempts, discouraging bids for the Corporation's common stock at a premium over market price or adversely affect the market price of, and the voting and other rights of the holders of the Corporation's common stock. These provisions could also discourage proxy contests and make it more difficult for shareholders to elect directors other than

candidates nominated by the Board of Directors.